GARFIELD
HISTORIC DISTRICT

Number of Properties: 769
Period of Significance: 1883-1955

Predominant Architectural

Styles:

Vernacular, Pyramid Cottage,
Bungalow, Period Revival, Ranch

Register Listings:

National Register of Historic Places
(NRHP) 2010

Phoenix Historic Property Register
(PHPR) 2005

As Victoria Place (NRHP 1988;
PHPR 1989)

As Dennis Addition (PHPR 2001),
as Garfield Place (PHPR 2002)

Individually Listed Properties:

J.B. Bayless Store #7, 825 N. 7th St.
(NRHP 1985; PHPR 1998)

Brown’s Pharmacy, 1001 E. Pierce St.
(NRHP 1985)

George E. Cisney House, 916 E.
McKinley St. (NRHP 1995; PHPR
1994)

Grand Pyramid House, 915 E.
Pierce St. (NRHP 2002)

Burgess A. Hadsell House, 1001 E.
Fillmore St. (NRHP 1995)

Phoenix Building & Loan House,
1138-1140 E. Taylor St. (NRHP
1995)

E.W. Skinner, 917 E. Roosevelt St.
(NRHP 1995; PHPR 2002)

Verde Park Pumphouse, VanBuren
and 9th Streets (NRHP 1995)

The Garfield Historic District contains
primarily modest bungalows and Period
Revival style homes but it also includes a
noteworthy concentration of older turn-
of-the-century structures, including the
largest concentration of “Pyramid Cottages”
in Phoenix. The neighborhood provides a
sampling of architectural styles from the
earliest vernacular homes in Phoenix to the
early Ranch-style homes that would become
prevalent following World War II.

Garfield was developed from 1883 to 1955. The
neighborhood was one of the first additions

to the original Phoenix townsite. It is also an
excellent example of a “streetcar subdivision,”
where residential development was directly
related to the establishment of a streetcar line
through the neighborhood.

Before becoming a residential area, the
Garfield Historic District was part of an
extensive agricultural tract. The area was

farmed by John T. Dennis, a pioneer settler
who emigrated from Ohio in 1868. As Phoenix
grew, Dennis saw the value of his land for
future residential development. The original
subdivision was platted with a rectilinear street
grid clearly based on the original townsite
layout. The Dennis Addition was recorded with
Maricopa County on Nov. 16, 1883, and was
annexed into Phoenix in 1899.

Many municipal improvements stimulated
development in the Dennis Addition during
the late 1800s. The first city well and pumping
plant was located on a block of land at the
northeast corner of 9th and Van Buren streets.
One vernacular brick building related to

the pumping station is still standing at the
northwest corner of Verde Park near the
corner of 9th and Polk streets. The Phoenix
Street Railway built the first powerhouse just

to the west of the pumping plant. In 1895, the
Phoenix Street Railway extended their streetcar
line through the Dennis Addition. Called the

Brill Line, it ran along Pierce Street to 10th
Street and then north to the Brill Addition,
which was located just north of the Dennis
Addition. Both Dennis and Frederick Brill,
the owner of the Brill Addition, were investors
in the extension of the line. Virtually all of
the early streetcar lines were backed by large
landholders in order to promote land sales in
the new subdivisions. The Dennis Addition
itself was subdivided repeatedly in the
following decades.

The growth of the neighborhood as a solid
residential area in the 1920s encouraged the
establishment of local businesses and other
institutions. Six of the seven churches located
in the Garfield neighborhood were constructed
between 1925 and 1931. Commercial
establishments and small businesses also
flourished at that time, particularly at the
corner of 10th and Pierce streets where the
streetcar line turned north.
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i the city of Phoenix carries with it both benefits and

' responsibilities. Exterior modifications and new
development are subject to design review and approval
through the Historic Preservation Office before per-
mits can be issued. The Office also provides technical
assistance to historic property owners and administers
grants, when funds are available, for the preservation
of historic properties.
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City of Phoenix
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICE
200 W. Washington St., 3rd floor
Phoenix, AZ 85003
(602) 261-8699
phoenix.gov/historic - historic@phoenix.gov
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The activity that is the subject of this document has
N e been financed in part with Federal funds from the
o e _ =~ Fil || =) ™ National Park Service, U.S. Department of the Interior.
Torei ’ However, the contents and opinions do not necessarily
reflect the views or policies of the Department of the
Interior, nor does the mention of trade names or com-
mercial products constitute endorsement or recom-
mendation by the Department of the Interior.
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For more information or for a copy of this publication
in an alternate format, contact Planning & Develop-

Garfileld Historic District

Graphic design by Motley Design Group, LLC
Phoenix, Arizona

www.motleydesigngroup.com



